
City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA
 

Tuesday, March 3, 2015

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street
Pages

1. Call to Order

2. Prayer

A Prayer will be offered by Councillor DeHart.

3. Confirmation of Minutes 1 - 10

Public Hearing - February 17, 2015
Regular Meeting - February 17, 2015

4. Bylaws Considered at Public Hearing

4.1 1027 Clement Avenue, BL11059 (OCP14-0025) - Okanagan Valley Construction
Ltd.

11 - 11

Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).
To give Bylaw No. 11059 second and third readings in order to change the
future land use designation of the subject property.

4.2 1027 Clement Avenue, BL11060 (Z14-0038) - Okanagan Valley Construction Ltd. 12 - 12

To give Bylaw No. 11060 second and third readings in order to rezone the
subject property.

5. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the following items on the Agenda
were publicized.



6. Development Permit and Development Variance Permit Reports

6.1 889 Vaughan Avenue, DP14-0064 & DVP14-0052 - 1568447 Alberta Ltd. 13 - 58

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider the form and character and associated variance request for a new
brewery and accessory tasting room and events facilities on the subject
property.

6.2 2210 Abbott Street, BL11045 (Z14-0042) - Strandhaus Developments Inc. 59 - 59

To adopt Bylaw No. 11045 in order to rezone the subject property.

6.3 2210 Abbott Street, HAP14-0014 - Strandhaus Developments Inc. 60 - 78

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a Heritage Alteration Permit application to allow the demolition of
the existing dwelling and construction of a new semi-detached dwelling with
variances.

6.4 1091 Westpoint Drive, DVP15-0003 - Cavan & Stefanie Loughran 79 - 94

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a Development Variance Permit to vary the front yard setback to a
garage.

7. Reminders

8. Termination



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11059 
 

Official Community Plan Amendment No. OCP14-0025 – 
Okanagan Valley Construction Ltd.  

1027 Clement Avenue 

 
A bylaw to amend the "Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 
1. THAT Map 4.1 - GENERALIZED FUTURE LAND USE of “Kelowna 2030 – Official 

Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500” be amended by changing the Generalized Future 
Land Use designation of Lot 5, District Lot 138, Section 30, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 
3763, located on Clement Avenue, Kelowna, B.C., from the  MRM – Multiple Unit 
Residential (Medium Density) designation to the MRL – Multiple Unit Residential (Low 
Density) designation; 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 16th day of February, 2015. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the  
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this  
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 

 
City Clerk

 
 

 
 

 

11



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11060 
Z14-0038 – Okanagan Valley Construction Ltd.  

1027 Clement Avenue 

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of Lot 5, District Lot 138, Section 30, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 3763 
located on Clement Avenue, Kelowna, B.C., from the RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing zone 
to the RM1 – Four Dwelling Housing zone. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 16th day of February, 2015. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

12



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 3/3/2015 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning Department, Community Planning & Real Estate (RS) 

Application: DVP14-0052 / DP14-0064 Owner: 1568447 Alberta Ltd. 

Address: 889 Vaughan Avenue Applicant: Gary Tebbutt 

Subject: Development Permit / Development Variance Permit Application  

Existing OCP Designation: IND - Industrial 

Existing Zone: 
I2 – General Industrial & 
I4 – Central Industrial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Permit No. DP15-0064 for Lot 1, Section 
30, Township 26, ODYD, EPP34493 located on 889 Vaughan Avenue, Kelowna, BC subject to the 
following:  
 
1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “A”;  
 
2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land, be in general 
accordance with Schedule “B”;  
 
3. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule “C”;  
 
4. The applicant be required to post with the City, a Landscape Performance Security deposit in 
the form of a “Letter of Credit” in the amount of 125% of the estimated value of the landscaping, 
as determined by a professional landscaper;  
 
AND THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0052, for 
Lot 1, Section 30, Township 26, EPP34493, located on 889 Vaughan Avenue, Kelowna, BC;  
 
AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted:  
 
Section 15.2.5 (d): Development Regulations  
 
To vary the minimum front yard setback from 7.5m permitted to 0.0m proposed. 
 
 

13



DP14-0064 / DVP14-0052 – Page 2 

 
 

Table 8.1: General Industrial Uses/Warehousing and Storage: 
 
To vary the parking for general industrial uses/warehousing and storage from 59 stalls required to 
24 stalls proposed. 
  
AND THAT the applicant be required to complete the above noted conditions of Council’s 
approval of the Development Permit/Development Variance Permit Applications in order for the 
permits to be issued; 

 
AND FURTHER THAT this Development Permit/Development Variance Permit is valid for two (2) 
years from the date of Council approval, with no opportunity to extend. 
 

2.0 Purpose   

To consider the form and character and associated variance request for a new brewery and 
accessory tasting room and events facilities on the subject property.  

3.0 Urban Planning Department 

The Urban Planning Department supports this Development Permit application. The form and 
character of the proposed brewery is high quality and meets many of the City’s design guidelines. 
The building will add both character and depth to this Kelowna north area with its growing 
number of breweries, wineries and distilleries as well as create a building that will in some ways 
function as a northeastern landmark entrance to the City’s downtown. The proposed building 
setback variance along Clement Avenue will allow the building to be located much closer to the 
public realm which will serve to create a more interesting streetscape. 

Staff is also supportive of the parking variance. The proposed parking variance has been reviewed 
in depth based on the applicants’ analysis of the number of stalls required to serve the staff of 
the brewery and the plan to restrict liquor primary seating to a level that would see the required 
parking correspond to that available on-site. Research and discussion with the applicant team 
have indicated that the Zoning Bylaw requirement for “General Industrial Uses” is likely much 
too high for the proposed use ‘brewery’ use of the building and as such, staff has no reason to 
question that applicants proposal.  

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

Originally, the subject property formed a portion of four lots that comprised the block between 
Richter and Ethel Streets that was home to the BC Tree Fruits packing house. Also during its use, 
the site was a bulk fuel. After the sale of the site in 2013, the subject property was part of a 
subdivision application that resulted in the current lot configuration. At that time, the lot was 
found to contain contaminated soil as a result of the previous fuel storage use. A major 
restoration effort has resulted in lands that may now be developed, subject to receipt all 
necessary approvals from the Ministry of Environment.  

The application under consideration is the first of what will eventually be three development lots 
on the former packing house site, running between Richter and Ethel Streets, and Clement and 
Vaughan Avenues. All three lots will be developed comprehensively and will be known as Urban 
Square. 

14



DP14-0064 / DVP14-0052 – Page 3 

 
 

At present, the lot is split zoned between part I2 – General Industrial, and part I4 – Central 
Industrial. These zoning lines reflect the previous lot configuration. Both zones permit the 
brewery development. As part of the broader Urban Square development, the split zoning will be 
corrected for administrative clarity. 

In accordance with Council Policy No. 367, the applicant has conducted Neighbour Consultation. 
Of those tenants and owners contacted, no concerns were expressed (according to the 
applicant). 

4.2 Project Description 

The applicant is proposing to develop a brewery and accessory tasting room and events facilities 
on the subject property. All the proposed uses will be contained in a single building, being 
5,387.5m2 (58,000ft2) in gross floor area, which is planned to occupy the centre of the 
development site. 

The principal public access for the building is located on its west elevation, facing inwards 
toward the Urban Square development site. The main entrance leads into the tasting/tap room, 
which has its own outdoor patio space. The remainder of the main floor is dedicated to a mix of 
production, storage, processing and staff space. The second level includes a walkway mezzanine 
overlooking the brewery operations below, a brewery tasting area, and administration and staff 
space. 

Vehicle access and egress for the public will be taken from Vaughan Avenue, with parking located 
on the west side of the building. Loading access is taken from Vaughan Avenue, with egress 
directly onto Ethel Street. Staff parking is also located on the east side of the building. 

The overall feel and scale of the building is an authentic expression of its principally industrial 
purpose. The bulk of the building houses the brewery operation, which needs very high ceilings to 
contain the silos, storage tanks and other warehousing and processing equipment. The exterior of 
this portion of the building evidences strong vertical elements. Nevertheless, both south and 
west building elevations benefit from a higher level of architectural detailing such as having 
building elements that step down to reduce massing, using alternating building materials 
including large expanses of glazing, and strategically locating lighting to create a more positive 
interface for surrounding development, and for future customers. 

In its massing, design and finishing, the proposed building succeeds in balancing clear references 
to Kelowna’s industrial heritage while also projecting the image of a high-quality contemporary 
structure that looks to the future of the area. Tumbled brick and timber elements combine with 
simple building forms to provide a link to the area’s industrial history evidenced in buildings such 
as the Laurel Packinghouse. Contrasting this, large glazed areas, exposed metal, and organic 
colours signal a more contemporary feel. 

Landscaping on the site is focused on the west side of the lot, where a row of trees separate the 
vehicle parking area from the pedestrian walkway and entry feature. A mix of grasses and vines 
trained on trellis surround the perimeter of the structure. In addition, all three frontages of the 
development will include landscape boulevards and street trees the construction of which the 
applicant will be responsible.  

Two variances are proposed as part of this development. The first is a variance to the minimum 
front yard setback from 7.5m permitted in the I2 zone. The applicant has stated that the 
additional space was critical to the building successfully locating on site. In order to mitigate the 
impacts of the reduced setback, the applicant has provided the south elevation of the building 
with a higher level of design detail (see attached Variance Rationale). 

15



DP14-0064 / DVP14-0052 – Page 4 

 
 

The second variance requested is to off-street vehicle parking. The applicant has requested a 
reduction in parking from 136 stalls required to 64 stalls proposed. As shown in the Zoning 
Analysis Table below, 59 of the 136 stall requirement is for the brewery production space and is 
calculated by Gross Floor Area. However, the applicant anticipates a maximum staff requirement 
of 16 for the brewery (and 8 for the brewpub). If one stall is provided per employee, this leaves  
40 stalls available for patrons. The events centre and tap room are calculated using the Liquor 
Primary use class, yielding 40 stalls as a requirement for the 160 liquor primary occupancy load (1 
stall per 4 seats). The 4 available stalls would support approximately 160 patrons, where the 
actual areas available would support more. In short, there is more space available for patrons 
than there is parking. As a means to equalize this imbalance the applicant has proposed to use 
the Liquor Licence process with a Liquor Licensing occupant load restriction of 160 persons. 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the northwest corner of Clement Avenue and Ethel Street, on 
the east side of the former packinghouse site. The 0.78ha site is presently undeveloped and 
contains no improvements.  

The lot sits on the southern boundary between the north end industrial area and the single 
detached residential area across Clement Avenue to the south. Surrounding uses reflect this 
division of residential and industrial uses separated by Clement. Specifically, adjacent land uses 
are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North I4 – Central Industrial BC Tree Fruits cold storage facility 

East I4 – Central Industrial 
Lois Lane Antiques 
SunRype 

South RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 
Established low and medium density 
single detached housing 

West 
I2 – General Industrial 
I4 – Central Industrial 

Former packinghouse, Urban Square 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

16



DP14-0064 / DVP14-0052 – Page 5 

 
 

 

Subject Property Map: 889 Vaughan Avenue 

 

4.4 Zoning Analysis Table   

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA I2/I4 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 4,000 m2/ 7,819 m2 

Lot Width 40.0 m/ 106-115 m 

Lot Depth 35.0 m/ 78.02 m 

Development Regulations 
Floor Area Ratio 1.5/3.0 0.69 

Site Coverage  60%/none 51.15% 

Height 14.0 m/18.0 m 13.11 m 

Front Yard 7.5 m 0.0 m 

Side Yard (east) 6.0 m/0.0 m 22.18 m 

Side Yard (west) 0.0 m/0.0 m 21.84 m 

Rear Yard 0.0 m/0.0 m 0.0 m 

Other Regulations 

Minimum Parking Requirements 

General Industrial Uses = 59  
Warehousing & Storage = 5 

Liquor Primary = 40 
TOTAL = 104 

General Industrial Uses + 
Warehousing = 24 

Liquor Primary = 40 
TOTAL = 64 stalls 

Bicycle Parking 
Class I =  1 
Class II = 5 

Class I = 6 spaces 
Class II = 8 spaces 

17



DP14-0064 / DVP14-0052 – Page 6 

 
 

Landscaping Requirements: 
Front 

Side (east) 
Side (west) 

East 

 
Level 2 
Level 2 
none 

Level 2 

 
Level 2 

Level 2 (fence) 
none 

Level 2 

Loading Space 3 spaces 5 spaces 

 Indicates a requested variance to the minimum front yard setback from 6.0m permitted to 0.0m proposed. 

 Indicates a requested variance to the number of off-street vehicle parking spaces from 136 required to 64 proposed. 

5.0 Current Development Policies   

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Ensure efficient use of industrial land supply.1 

Industrial Land Use Intensification.2 Encourage more intensive industrial use of currently under-
utilized industrial sites during site redevelopment or by permitting lot subdivision where new lots 
can meet the minimum lot size requirements of the Zoning Bylaw. 

Comprehensive Development Permit Area – Objectives3 

 Convey a strong sense of authenticity through urban design that is distinctive for Kelowna; 

 Promote a high urban design standard and quality of construction for future development 
that is coordinated with existing structures; 

 Integrate new development with existing site conditions and preserve the character 
amenities of the surrounding area; 

 Promote interesting, pedestrian friendly streetscape design and pedestrian linkages; 

 Provide for a scale and massing of commercial buildings that promotes a safe, enjoyable 
living, pedestrian, working, shopping and service experience; 

 Incorporate architectural features and detailing of buildings and landscapes that define an 
area’s character; 

 Promote alternative transportation with enhanced streetscapes and multimodal linkages; 

 Highlight the significance of community institutional and heritage buildings; and 

 Protect and restore the urban ecology (i.e. architectural and site consideration with 
respect to the ecological impact on urban design). 

 Moderate urban water demand in the City so that adequate water supply is reserved for 
agriculture and for natural ecosystem processes. 

 Reduce outdoor water use in new or renovated landscape areas in the City by a target of 
30%, when compared to 2007. 

6.0 Technical Comments   

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Chapter 5 (Development Process), Objective 5.29. 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Chapter 5 (Development Process), Policy 5.29.1. 
3 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Chapter 14 (Urban Design DP Guidelines), Objectives. 

18



DP14-0064 / DVP14-0052 – Page 7 

 
 

a) Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 

Building Permit(s)  

b) Placement permits are required for any sales or construction trailers that will be on 

site. The location(s) of these are to be shown at time of development permit 

application. 

c) A Building Code analysis is required for the structure at time of building permit 

applications, but the following items may affect the form and character of the 

building(s): 

i. Spatial issues with glazing between A2 and F2 occupancies 

ii. Any security system that limits access to exiting needs to be addressed in 

the code analysis by the architect. 

iii. Access to the roof is required per NFPA and guard rails may be required and 

should be reflected in the plans if required.  

d) A Geotechnical report is required to address the sub soil conditions and site drainage.  

e) Guards are required for all interconnected floors that provide access to exit for A2 

type occupancies. The drawings provided don’t clearly identify these requirements, 

but will be reviewed at time of building permit application. 

f) Fire resistance ratings are required for storage, janitor and/or garbage enclosure 

room(s). The drawings submitted for building permit are to clearly identify how this 

rating will be achieved and where these area(s) are located. 

g) The upper floor plans require dedicated corridors that connect to the exit stair 

shafts). An exit analysis is required as part of the code analysis at time of building 

permit application. The exit analysis is to address travel distances within the units 

based on equipment layout, number of required exits, vestibules requirements, etc. 

h) Size and location of all signage to be clearly defined as part of the development 

permit. This should include the signage required for the building addressing to be 

defined on the drawings per the bylaws on the permit application drawings. 

i) Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 

applications. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

See attached Memoranda, dated May 6, 2014. 

6.3 RCMP 

No concerns.  

6.4 Real Estate Services 

If encroachments onto City lands occur, Encroachment Agreements will be required to be 

executed prior to DP/DVP issuance. If due to the encroachment, street lighting cannot be 

provided, consider agreements for lighting or protect for lighting poles on property using SRW. 

 

 

19



DP14-0064 / DVP14-0052 – Page 8 

 
 

6.5 Fire Department 

a) Construction fire safety plan is required to be submitted and reviewed prior to 

construction and updated as required. 

b) Engineered Fire Flow calculations are required to determine Fire Hydrant 

requirements as per the City of Kelowna Subdivsion Bylaw #7900. 

c) A visible address must be posted as per City of Kelowna By-Laws 

d) Sprinkler drawings are to be submitted to the Fire Dept. for review when available. 

e) A fire safety plan as per section 2.8 BCFC is required at occupancy. The fire safety 

plan and floor plans are to be submitted for approval in AutoCAD Drawing format on a 

CD or DVD to facilitate Fire Department pre-planning for this structure. The fire safety 

plan should clearly detail the unique requirements for this structure. A copy of the 

sprinkler system owner’s certificate is to be included in the fire safety plan. 

f) Fire Department access is to be met as per BCBC 3.2.5.6 

g) Fire Department steel lock box or key tube acceptable to the fire dept. is required by 

the fire dept. entrance. Kurt’s Lock & Safe at 100A – 1021 Ellis Street, Kelowna is the 

approved supplier for flush mount lock boxes. 

h) The standpipes connections are to be installed on the transitional landings of the 

stairwells as per NFPA 14. 3)  

i) Fire Stairwells to be marked clearly (including roof access) as per Fire Department 

requirements. This would be standardized and approved by the Kelowna Fire 

Department (KFD). 

j) All requirements of the City of Kelowna Fire and Life Safety Bylaw 10760 shall be met,  

k) Fire alarm system is to be monitored by an agency meeting the CAN/ULC S562 

Standard. 

l) Contact Fire Prevention Branch for fire extinguisher requirements and placement. 

m) Fire department connection is to be within 45M of a fire hydrant – please ensure this is 

possible and that the FD connection is clearly marked and visible from the street. 

7.0 Application Chronology   

Date of Application Received: April 9, 2014 

Advisory Design Team (pre-application):  January 16, 2014 

Project placed “off-line” by developer: June 30, 2014 

Revised Plans received: January 23, 2015 

 

 

 

20



DP14-0064 / DVP14-0052 – Page 9 

 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Ryan Smith 
Urban Planning Manager  
 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  D. Gilchrist, Div. Dir. of Community Planning & Real Estate 
 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Context/Site Photos 
Site Plan 
Floor Plans 
Conceptual Elevations 
Landscape Plan 
Conceptual Renderings 
Design Rational 
Development Engineering Memoranda, dated May 6, 2014. 

21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11045 
Z14-0042 – Strandhaus Developments Inc., Inc. No. 

BC1005533 and Steven & Loretta Nicholson  
2210 Abbott Street 

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of Lot 27, District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan 535, located on Abbott Street, 
Kelowna, B.C., from the RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to the RU6 – Two Dwelling 
Housing zone. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 15th day of December, 2014. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 13th day of January, 2015. 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 13th day of January, 2015. 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

59



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: February 4, 2015 

RIM No. 0940-60 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LB) 

Application: HAP14-0014 Owner: 
Strandhaus Developments 
Inc., Inc. No. BC1005533 

Address: 2210 Abbott Street Applicant: Steve & Loretta Nicholson 

Subject: Heritage Alteration Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

Proposed Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT final adoption of Zone Amending Bylaw No. 11045 be considered by Council; 

AND THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Heritage Alteration Permit No. HAP14-0014 for Lot 
27, District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan 535, located on 2210 Abbott Street, Kelowna, BC, subject to the 
following: 

1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “A”; 

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “B”. 

AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

Section 13.6.6(b): RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Development Regulations 

To vary the maximum height for accessory buildings from 4.5 m permitted to 5.64 m 
proposed. 

Section 13.6.6(c): RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Development Regulations 

To vary the front yard from 4.5 m permitted to 1.21 m proposed. 

Section 13.6.6(d): RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Development Regulations 

To vary the north side yard from 4.5 m permitted to 2.03 m / 2.34 m proposed. 

60



HAP14-0014 – Page 2 

 
 

AND FURTHER THAT this Heritage Alteration Permit is valid for two (2) years from the date of 
Council approval, with no opportunity to extend. 

2.0 Purpose 

To consider a Heritage Alteration Permit application to allow the demolition of the existing 
dwelling and construction of a new semi-detached dwelling with variances. 

3.0 Urban Planning  

Urban Planning supports the proposed development of a semi-detached dwelling on the subject 
property. The property is within the Abbott Street Heritage Conservation Area, but is not listed 
on the City’s Heritage Register. The Abbott Street & Marshall Street Heritage Conservation Areas 
Development Guidelines identifies the dominant style for the property is “Early Suburban” and 
for the block as “Arts & Crafts (late)”.  

Form & Character 

The architecture of the new semi-detached dwelling takes design cues from the “Early Suburban” 
style with the asymmetrical façade, horizontal design, massing, and brick and stucco exterior. 
The design is also inspired by Frank Lloyd Wright’s Prairie Style of the early 1900s. It 
complements the semi-detached dwelling at 2248 Abbott Street (approved in 2014) and the single 
detached dwelling at 2195 Abbott Street, which was constructed in the late 1950s. 

The development respects established building spacing and driveway access as per the Heritage 
Conservation Area policies in the Official Community Plan. The applicant will retain the existing 
driveway access from Royal Avenue, reducing it to 5.78 m in width, which will avoid disrupting 
the Abbott Street recreational corridor and streetscape. 

To address the Community Heritage Committee’s initial comments on the proposed development, 
the applicant revised the proposed Abbott Street elevation of the detached garage. Windows, 
column details and a cantilevered roof overhang were added to the lower portion of the building 
to break up the brick wall and create visual interest along this portion of the site. Ivy will be 
planted on this wall to form natural screening. The existing hedge along the recreational corridor 
is within the City-owned right-of-way and the applicant has been in discussion with City Staff to 
replace the hedge with other appropriate forms of landscaping to enhance this corner. 

Variances 

The applicant has requested three variances to the Zoning Bylaw: 

 To vary the accessory building height from 4.5 m permitted to 5.64 m proposed; 

 To vary the front yard from 4.5 m permitted to 1.21 m proposed; and 

 To vary the north side yard from 4.5 m permitted to 2.03 – 2.34 m proposed. 

The variance for the height of the accessory building is due to the second storey storage area 
above the garage. The second storey is set back 1.22 m from the east exterior wall of the first 
storey and includes a balcony and windows facing Abbott Street, which reduces the massing and 
improves the façade along the street. Were the garage attached to the dwelling it would not be 
limited to 4.5 m in height. Furthermore, height is measured to the highest point on a non-sloping 
(i.e. flat) roof as opposed to the mid-point of a sloping roof; therefore, a sloping roof could have 
a similar peak height. 

The detached garage requires a variance to be located 1.21 m from the front lot line. Detaching 
the garage from the dwelling reduces the structure’s massing and allows for sightlines through 

61



HAP14-0014 – Page 3 

 
 

the property. Unlike most properties along Abbott Street, the property line is set back from the 
Abbott Street recreational corridor by up to 10 m at the north end of the property. The existing 
landscaping and mature tree between the property line and the recreational corridor provide a 
buffer and will screen the first storey of the garage from view along Abbott Street. Staff will 
work with the applicant to ensure any changes to the landscaping will continue to provide 
appropriate screening. 

The north side yard is along a flanking street (Royal Avenue) and a variance is required to reduce 
the side yard to 2.03 m and 2.34 m. The portions of the dwelling that extend into the side yard 
setback are adjacent to the pocket park and associated parking area at the west end of Royal 
Avenue and would comply with the regular side yard requirements without a flanking street. 
Overall the semi-detached dwelling has a smaller footprint and larger setbacks than the existing 
non-conforming dwelling. 

Consultation 

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 respecting public consultation, the applicant undertook 
neighbour consultation by individually contacting the neighbours within 50 m of the subject 
property. No major concerns were identified during this consultation. Staff received 
correspondence from a few residents who expressed some concerns with the proposed design. 
The neighbour immediately to the south provided written correspondence in support of the 
proposed development. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The Community Heritage Committee first considered the Heritage Alteration Permit application 
on October 2, 2014. At this meeting, the Committee did not support the application, requesting a 
more complete set of drawings and changes to the accessory building. In consultation with staff, 
the applicant provided an improved set of drawings and revised the design of the accessory 
building. At the November 6, 2014 meeting the Committee passed a recommendation supporting 
the application, acknowledging the changes made to the façade facing Abbott Street. 

The Rezoning application was first considered by Council on December 15, 2014 and the Bylaw 
received second and third reading following the Public Hearing on January 13, 2015. 

4.2 Project Description 

The applicant is seeking to rezone the subject property and develop a semi-detached dwelling in 
place of the existing single detached dwelling, which is in a state of disrepair. The property is 
within the Abbott Street Heritage Conservation Area and interfaces with residential properties, 
hospital-related uses and the waterfront, and has been designed with open spaces that address 
the public realm. The proposed architectural style is based on the Frank Lloyd Wright / Prairie 
Style. 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located at the southwest corner of the intersection of Abbott Street and 
Royal Avenue in the Abbott Street Heritage Conservation Area. The property is designated    
S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential in the Official Community Plan and is within the Permanent 
Growth Boundary as well as the Abbott Street Heritage Conservation Area. Bordering the property 
are residential areas to the north and south, a parking lot for Kelowna General Hospital to the 
east and Okanagan Lake to the west. 

62



HAP14-0014 – Page 4 

 
 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single detached dwelling 

East HD1 – Kelowna General Hospital Kelowna General Hospital parking lot 

South RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single detached dwelling 

West W1 – Recreational Water Use Okanagan Lake and future public trail 

 

Subject Property Map: 2210 Abbott Street 

 

4.4 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU6 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 800 m2 min. 968.58 m2 

Lot Width 20.0 m min. 20.07 m 

Lot Depth 30.0 m min. 48.26 m 

Development Regulations 
Site Coverage (buildings) 40% max. 38.3% 

Site Coverage (buildings, 
driveways & parking) 

50% max. 38.3% 

Height 
9.5 m or 2 ½ storeys (principal 

building) max. 
4.5 m (accessory building) max. 

6.32 m 
 

5.64 m  

Front Yard 4.5 m min. 1.21 m  

Side Yard (south) 
2.0 m (1-1 ½ storeys) min. 
2.3 m (2-2 ½ storeys) min. 

Varies between 2.03 and 6.85 m 

Side Yard (north) 4.5 m (flanking street) min. Varies between 2.03 and 6.85 m  

Rear Yard 7.5 m min. 9.064 m 

63



HAP14-0014 – Page 5 

 
 

Other Regulations 
Private Open Space 60 m2 (30 m2 / dwelling) min. Meets requirements 

Minimum Parking 4 (2 stalls / dwelling) min. Meets requirements 

Okanagan Lake Sightlines 120° min. Meets requirements 

 Requested variance to increase the accessory building height from 4.5 m permitted to 5.64 m proposed. 

Requested variance to reduce the front yard from 4.5 m permitted to 1.21 m proposed. 

 Requested variance to reduce the north side yard from 4.5 m permitted to 2.03 m / 2.34 m proposed. 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Sensitive Infill.2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design, 
height and siting. 

Heritage Conservation Area Guidelines 

Objectives:3 

 Maintain the residential and historical character of the Marshall Street and the Abbott 
Street Heritage Conservation Areas; 

 Encourage new development, additions and renovations to existing development which 
are compatible with the form and character of the existing context; 

 Ensure that changes to buildings and streetscapes will be undertaken in ways which offer 
continuity of the ‘sense-of-place’ for neighbours, the broader community; and 

 Provide historical interest for visitors through context sensitive development. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

6.2 Development Engineering 

 See attached memorandum, dated September 29, 2014. 

6.3 Fire Department 

 Requirements of Section 9.10.19 Smoke Alarms of the BC Building Code 2012 are to be 
met. 

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 
3 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Objectives (Heritage Conservation Area Guidelines Chapter). 

64



HAP14-0014 – Page 6 

 
 

6.4 FortisBC – Electric 

 There are primary distribution facilities within Abbott Street. The applicant is responsible 
for costs associated with any change to the subject property’s existing service, if any, as 
well as the provision of appropriate land rights where required. 

6.5 Parks & Public Places 

 The applicant is required to provide a section and details regarding any proposed 
retaining walls on this property adjacent to the west and north property lines, i.e. the 
common property lines with the future waterfront walkway. How the wall works with 
proposed fencing / railings should be addressed in these details. 

 Construction of a public sidewalk within the Royal Avenue road right-of-way be considered 
to connect the proposed waterfront walkway with the Abbott Street recreational corridor 
and the existing Royal Avenue sidewalk across Abbott Street. 

6.6 Telus 

 Telus will provide underground facilities to this development. Developer will be required 
to supply and install conduit as per Telus policy. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  September 16, 2014  
Date Public Consultation Completed: August 28, 2014  
 

Community Heritage Committee  November 6, 2014 

The above noted application was reviewed by the Community Heritage Committee at the 
meeting held on November 6, 2014 and the following recommendations were passed: 

THAT the Community Heritage Committee does support Heritage Alteration Permit 
Application No. HAP14-0014 for the property located at 2210 Abbott Street in order to 
allow the demolition of the existing dwelling and the form and character of a new semi-
detached dwelling with variances. 

Anecdotal Comments: 

The Community Heritage Committee acceptance of the variances is largely due to the 
contextual situation of this property, bearing in mind the buffer zone of the recreational 
corridor on Abbott Street. 

Report prepared by: 

     
Laura Bentley, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 

65



HAP14-0014 – Page 7 

 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Draft Heritage Alteration Permit No. HAP14-0014 
Schedule A: Site Plan and Floor Plans 
Schedule B: Elevations and Colour Board 

66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: February 4, 2015 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (TY) 

Application: DVP15-0003 Owner: Cavan & Stefanie Loughran 

Address: 1091 Westpoint Drive Applicant: Cavan & Stefanie Loughran 

Subject: Development Variance Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation  

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP15-0003, for Lot 
11, Section 31, Township 29, ODYD Plan KAP87220, located at 1091 Westpoint Drive, Kelowna, 
BC;  

AND THAT a variance to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

Section 13.1.6 (c) - RU1 Development Regulations 

To vary the minimum required front yard setback to a garage or carport from 6.0m 
required to 3.0m proposed. 

AND FURTHER THAT the applicant be required to complete the above-noted condition within two 
years of Council’s approval of the Development Variance Permit application in order for the 
permit to be issued.  

2.0 Purpose 

To consider a Development Variance Permit to vary the front yard setback to a garage from 6.0m 
required to 3.0m proposed. 

3.0 Urban Planning 

Urban Planning supports the proposed variance to reduce the front yard setback. The proposed 
variance is to allow a garage to encroach in the 6.0m front yard setback. The proposed site plan 
complies with all other requirements of the Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 such as site coverage, 
remaining setbacks and no-build covenants. 

A no-disturb covenant and Wildland Fire Protection right of way cover a substantial portion of the 
property which limits the buildable area and the rear yard. The applicant worked with Staff to 

79



DVP15-0003 – Page 2 

 
 

find a balance between siting the garage back from the front property line while leaving usable 
space for a rear yard. The proposed usable space in the rear yard is 52m2. 

 

The applicant has submitted a design that 
places the driveway in the most suitable 
location in terms of sightlines. The proposed 
location sits along the east portion of the 
front property line, bringing the driveway 
farther into the cul-de-sac which maintains 
visibility when driving on Westpoint Drive. 

The proposed garage is a typical two vehicle 
garage. The nearest driveways are 52m to 
the west and 28m to the east. A public trail 
entrance is located on the cul-de-sac 18m 
away from the edge of the proposed 
driveway. 

In accordance with Council Policy 367 – 
Public Notification & Consultation for 
Development Variance Applications, the 
applicant has distributed notification 
information to the neighbouring properties. 
To date, no concerns have been brought to 
the attention of City Staff. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The subject property is in a subdivision with no-disturb covenants. There is a statutory right of 
way in the rear yard of the subject property for utility purposes along with a no-disturb covenant 
protecting the existing slope and mature Ponderosa Pine trees. The applicant is proposing to 
construct a garage with vehicle access from the front at a setback of 3.0m from the front 
property line. 

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located in the Westpoint Drive cul-de-sac in the North Mission – Crawford 
sector. The property is designated S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential in the Official 
Community Plan and is within the Permanent Growth Boundary. The area surrounding the 
property is zoned RU1. 

  

80



DVP15-0003 – Page 3 

 
 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU1 Large Lot Housing Single Family Dwelling Lot 

East RU1 Large lot Housing Single Family Dwelling Lot 

South RU1 Large lot Housing Undeveloped Land 

West RU1 Large Lot Housing Single Family Dwelling Lot 

 
Subject Property Map:  1091 Westpoint Drive  

 

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 

Lot Area 550m2 min 1,806m2 

Lot Width 16.5m min 62m 

Lot Depth 30m min 30m 

Development Regulations 

Height 9.5m max 7.0m 

Front Yard 
4.5m to house  
6.0m to garage 

4.5m to house  
3.0m to garage  

Side Yard (west) 2.3m min 2.3m 

Side Yard (east) 2.0m min n/a 

Rear Yard 7.5m min 9.1m 

Other Regulations 

Maximum site coverage 40% max 14% 

Maximum site coverage with 
driveways and parking 

50% max 16% 

 Requested Front Yard Setback to a garage facing the street 

81



DVP15-0003 – Page 4 

 
 

5.0 Technical Comments 

5.1 Development Engineering Department 

See attached Development Engineering Memo dated January 26, 2015 

6.0 Application Chronology  

Application Received:    January 6, 2015 
Neighbourhood Consultation Completed: January 16, 2015  
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Tracey Yuzik, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:      Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Schedule “A” - Site Plan 
Schedule “B” - Elevations 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Draft Development Variance Permit DVP15-0003 

82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94


	Agenda
	3. Draft Minutes - February 17, 2015 Public Hearing.pdf
	3. Draft Minutes - February 17, 2015 Regular Meeting.pdf
	4.1 BL11059 OCP14-0025 1027 Clement Avenue.pdf
	4.2 BL11060 Z14-0038 1027 Clement Avenue.pdf
	6.1 Vaughan Ave 889 Report DVP14-0052_DP14-0064.pdf
	6.1 Vaughan Ave 889 Attachments DP14-0064 DVP14-0052.pdf
	6.2 BL11045 Z14-0042 2210 Abbott Street.pdf
	6.3 2015-02-04 Report - HAP14-0014 - Abbott St 2210.pdf
	6.3 Abbott St 2210 Attachments HAP14-0014.pdf
	6.4 Westpoint 1091 Report DVP15-0003.pdf
	6.4 Westpoint 1091 Attachments DVP15-0003.pdf

